MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE COUNCIL HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER, CITY HALL ON MONDAY, JULY 6TH 1931 AT 8:00 P.M.

PRESENT:

Mayor E. H. Bridgman Alderman Brown Alderman Cartwright Alderman Huggett Alderman Loutet Alderman Wilson

The Minutes of the regular meeting of Council, held on Monday, June 15th 1931, together with the Minutes of a Special meeting of Council, held on Monday, June 22nd 1931 – copies of which had previously been supplied to each member of the Council – were taken as read, and on motion of Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown adopted.

His Worship the Mayor conveyed the regrets of Alderman Anderson who was unable to attend the meeting on account of being out of town.

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that Mr. C. D. Jermyn, be and is hereby appointed Acting-Treasurer during the absence on vacation or leave of absence of Mr. H. R. Straw, City Treasurer as and from the sixth day of July 1931.

CORRESPONDING

From the Registrar, County Court, Vancouver, being receipt for By-laws numbered:

- 1299 "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER HIGHWAYS DEDICATION BY-LAW NUMBER THREE 1931"
- 1300 "THE FERRIES OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE BY-LAW 1926, AMENDMENT BY-LAW 1931"
- 1301 "NORTH VANCOUVER PARKING BY-LAW, 1931"
- 1302 "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1931, NUMBER 8"
- 1303 "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1931, NUMBER 9"
- 1304 "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER PLUMBING BY-LAW AMENDMENT BY-LAW NO. 1, 1931"

RECEIVED AND FILED.

From the Inspector of Municipalities:

- (a) Certificate of Approval in connection with By-laws numbered 1265 to 1280 (Sixteen Concrete Sidewalks constructed during 1930)
- (b) Certificate of Approval in connection with By-law numbered 1295
 "THE CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LOCAL IMPROVEMENT DEBENTURE CONSOLIDATION BY-LAW NUMBER 2. 1931"

RECEIVED AND FILED.

From the Deputy Provincial Secretary, certified copies of Orders-in-Council numbered:

- 832 By-law No. 1295 "The City of North Vancouver Local Improvement Debenture Consolidation By-law Number 2, 1931"
- 833 Bylaw No. 1300 "The Ferries Operation and Maintenance By-law 1926, Amendment By-law 1931"

RECEIVED AND FILED.

From Mayor L. D. Taylor, Vancouver, advising that he will be please to see that all possible consideration is given to the Second Narrows Canal and Foreshore development when attention is being given to public work projects to be undertaken in connection with Unemployment Relief measures.

RECEIVED AND FILED.

From W. J. Bingham, Chief Constable, Vancouver, advising that arrangements have been made to have Mr. Arthur P. May sworn in as a Special Constable in connection with the prevention of begging at the Vancouver Ferry Terminal.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Chief Constable be thanked for his prompt and courteous attention in the matter.

From the local Order of the Royal Purple and the Order of Elks in regard to inviting the Dominion Convention of the Ladies of the Royal Purple to be held in the City of North Vancouver in 1932.

The Clerk explained that on account of urgency to reach the 1931 Convention at Regina and invitation had already been forwarded.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the action be confirmed.

From the Canadian Electrical Trades Union requesting permission to examine the permits issued for electrical work in the City during the past two years.

The Clerk stated that on instructions of the Mayor the organization had been asked to state the reasons for the request to which no reply had been received.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that communication be laid on the table.

From the Sponsors of the National Juvenile Band of Vancouver, requesting the privilege of providing free of charge a few open-air concerts in the Parks during the summer months. (Services rendered would be an optional after consideration)

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the application be referred to the Parks Committee with power to act, and that free transportation on the Ferries be granted to the members of the Band when in uniform at any time they are on City business.

From Hewett's Home Furnishings, 238 Lonsdale Avenue, requesting the privilege of exhibiting merchandise on the sidewalk in front of his store.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the merchants in the City be notified it is unlawful to place merchandise for the purpose of display on a City sidewalk and that Council will hold any person liable who exhibits any object or thing which is an obstruction to the free use of the sidewalk.

From Gertrude Curtis, applying for permission to sell the residence at 134 13th Street East – Better Housing Loan 17.

The Clerk reported that the loan was made on July 17th 1920 and that the borrower had performed all the terms of the agreement.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that permission to dispose of the property be granted – provided all necessary requirements are fulfilled.

From the Deputy Minister of Railways, Victoria, submitting approved plan of road crossing over the tracks of the Pacific Great Eastern Railway on Mahon Avenue together with Order-in-Council Number 812 and Certificate 585 in connection therewith.

It was pointed out that the City had made no application for permission to construct a highway crossing over the Pacific Great Eastern Railway at the foot of Mahon Avenue, but that certain mill interests South of the right-of-way were believed to be interested in a change of location over an existing crossing.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Hugget and resolved that the Department be notified the City had not made an application for the approval of the plan and is not contemplating any construction work at the location in question.

From Burns, Walkem and Thompson, Barristers, Vancouver, stating they are unable to complete registration of Lot 1-A, Block 171, D. L. 274 (St. Patrick's Avenue Street end) as shown on registered plan number 972, until conveyance has been made by the City to the Vancouver Harbour Commissioners of the parcel as provided for in By-law number 780.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the application be referred to the Solicitor and Engineer for report.

From the Citizens Employment Committee of North Vancouver – Financial statement for the period ended May 31st 1931, showing a cash income of \$453.25 and disbursements of a like amount – eighty-one days work had been provided for men and sixty for women – in addition nine permanent positions had been found for applicants.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the report be received and filed for reference.

From Donald MacLean, 620 19th Street East, applying for a grant towards providing prizes for a proposed Highland Dancing Competition to be staged during the month of August at the Horticultural Grounds.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that a grant of \$15.00 be made payable to the "Highland Dancing Trust Fund" to be applied in providing prizes for the winners in the competition.

From the North Vancouver Unemployed Association:

(1) Requesting that a member of the unemployed be appointed as the Association's representative on the Committee dealing with relief.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that in as much as the whole Council deals with relief matters the request be not entertained.

(2) Requesting that unemployed gangs be permitted to work on Saturday afternoons.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that in view of the financial situation the request be not granted.

From the City of Vancouver, enclosing three resolutions, dealing with Unemployment, unanimously passed at a meeting of the Mayors and Reeves of the Lower Mainland of British Columbia, held in the City Hall, Vancouver, on June 25th last.

The resolutions having been more or less rendered nugatory by subsequent Government action were ordered received and filed.

From sixteen members of Unemployed requesting that work be provided in lieu of time lost on July 1st, Dominion Day, said to be through no fault of their own.

The Mayor spoke regarding dissatisfaction on the part of some men and certain adjustments that he believed were necessary due to some foremen not having worked their men on wet days, whereas another foreman who took a longer chance on the weather, worked his gang.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the requisite adjustments be worked out and made on the most equitable basis possible.

From R. S. Jackson 235 Windsor Road, applying for permission to sell balloons on the City streets on Dominion Day, holidays and Sundays.

The Clerk reported having advised the applicant that this is not the policy of the Council to grant privileges of this character and that the business can very properly be taken care of through established concerns who hold licenses from the City.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the action taken be confirmed.

From the Lynnmour and District Sports Association inviting the Mayor and Council to attend their annual sports on Saturday, July 11th and at the same time consider a small grant towards the event.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the invitation be accepted with thanks and as many members of the Council as possible attend, together with advice to the Association that a grant cannot be made for entertainment of the character that is held without the City limits.

From Joseph Keighley, 2020 Chesterfield Avenue, complaining that the condition of the garbage dump maintained by the City at Twentieth Street and Chesterfield Avenue is dangerous to the safety of public health.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the area in question be closed forthwith as a dumping ground, and the Health Committee and City Engineer report at the next meeting of Council on an area of land more suitable for the purpose.

From the North Shore Cricket Week Committee applying for permission to sell soft drinks and ice-cream at the Boulevard Park during Cricket Week – July 20th to 24th 1931.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, Seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the application be granted.

From the B.C. Motor Transportation Ltd. with further reference to their application for the renewal of taxicab space at the Vancouver Ferry Terminal.

From R. C. Bowhay, 821 Ridgeway Avenue, applying for permission to operate two taxicabs from the Vancouver Ferry Landing (application evidently made on behalf of the Check Taxi Co.)

Reference was made to the dangerous practice of cabs using the stand, cutting into the line-up of waiting automobiles and the further advisability of consulting with Mr. May, the Weigh Scale operator, before a decision is made on the applications.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the application be referred to the Ferry Committee for report.

From the Engineer reporting that at the present time one ordinary house rate is being charged for water supplied to "Garden Court Apartments" and recommending that in future the rates provide for in the Waterworks By-law be charged namely:

Four apartments at \$5.00 every six months	\$20.00
One single room at \$1.00 every six months	\$1.00
	\$21.00

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the recommendation of the Engineer be adopted and the owners advised accordingly.

From Capt. W. Somerville, 133 East 21st Street, applying for an extension of the lane Westerly from St. George's Avenue to the rear of his property – Lots 33, 34, and 35, in the resubdivision of Lots 1 and 2, Block 7, D. L. 549.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the application be referred to the Board of Works Committee for report.

From John C. Wood, 476 Alder Street, applying for an extension of time for the winter months in which to quit and deliver up possession of the premises situated on Lot 15, Block 169, D. L. 274, on account of having no steady employment and the continued ill health of his wife.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that an extension of six months time be granted, without prejudice – subject top the tenants agreeing to be clear of the premises on or before the expiry date.

From the Clerk certifying that ninety-three owners had petitioned against construction of a twenty-four-inch Storm Sewer on Ridgeway Avenue from the South side of Sixteenth Street to the North side of Sixteenth Street as a work of Local Improvement, but that these were not sufficient to prevent the work from being proceeded with. (The total

assessed value of the whole work is \$179,460.00. The owners petitioning against the work represented property of an assessed value of \$59,705.00. In addition the City is the owner of lots in the area (not including streets and intersections) of an assessed value of \$35,780.00 and owners abroad hold an assessed value of \$11,690.00)

NOTE: The petitioners against are practically all residents in the area.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the Certificate be received and filed, the work not proceeded with, and that the proposal be and is hereby abandoned.

From the North Shore "All-Black" Rugby Club and the North Shore Juvenile Football Association, applying for the use of Confederation Park for Rugby and Confederation and other Parks on which to play football.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the application be referred to the Parks Committee with the power to act.

From Twenty-two neighbourhood petitioners complaining against a family residing in the three hundred block Fourteenth Street West – urging their removal as a community menace.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the communication be referred to the Board of Police Commissioners.

From S. Karsgard, Nine hundred block Seventeenth Street East, applying for permission to cut wood on City property – Lots 14 to 17, Block 9, D. L. 616 – for use at the Nurseries.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the application be referred to the Engineer with power to act.

His Worship the Mayor recommended the appointment of Ex-Mayor G. H. Morden – (who had signified acceptance) as a member of the Board of Appeal under the Town Planning Act, in place of Colonel G. H. Dorrel, resigned.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the recommendation be and is hereby approved and confirmed.

From the Engineer reporting that the Indians on Mission Reserve No. 1 had tapped the City water supply pipe and made extensions from there without the consent of the Engineer and contrary to agreement, which provided for the installation of a main and twelve supply pipes with taps thereon to be placed at agreed upon places. The Engineer states that Mr. Ball, the Indian Agent, claims the Indians have the right to do so.

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the matter be taken up direct with the Department at Ottawa.

From Donald Gordon Patterson, applying for Superannuation – Guaranteed Allowance Plan.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the application be approved and Mr. Patterson retired from service – Superannuation to be granted in accordance with the prescribed tables in force.

From the North Vancouver General Hospital, applying for a grant of \$1500.00 towards the operating expense of the institution – a request having been made to the District of North Vancouver for a like amount.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the application be granted and a cheque issued by the Treasurer in favour of the Hospital Board of Management for the sum of \$1500.00.

From the Burrard Drydock Co. Ltd., submitting a list of residents employed by them during the month of May 1931.

The Clerk reported that of 213 men employed 160 appeared to be residents of the North Shore – the check, however, was not quite complete.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the list be further check and if not found correct, reported back to the Council.

PETITIONS

From W. McDowell, 906 16th Street West, and twenty-eight others, applying for the construction of a vehicular bridge to replace a destroyed pedestrian bridge crossing Mosquito Creek in the seven hundred block Sixteenth Street West.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the petition be referred to the Board of Works Committee for report.

From John MacLean and twenty-five other outside employees signifying their willingness to receive a five day week and regretting that the same offer had not been voluntarily made by more remunerative departments.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that the communication be referred to the Committee of the Whole.

From C. D. Jermyn and fourteen others petitioning against the house at 144 13th Street West being rented as a proposed clinic for the treatment of crippled and subnormal children.

The Clerk reported that the prospective tenants on hearing that there was opposition to the establishment of a school had voluntarily abandoned the proposal in so far as that house was concerned.

The Mayor ordered the petitioners to be notified accordingly.

ENQUIRIES

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that Mr. Jack Wardlaw be heard.

Mr. Wardlaw stated he intended leaving shortly on his annual publicity tour and proposed travelling through the states of Idaho, Montana, and Washington. Literature would be distributed and talks would be give regarding the North Shore, and a grant of \$100.00 was solicited to aid in the work.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the application be referred to the Finance Committee with power to act.

TENDERS

From W. A. Oakley, 651 7th Street East, offering the sum of \$100.00 on terms of \$25.00 cash, balance in three, six, and nine months, with interest at 7% per annum on deferred payments, for Lot 3, Block 7, D. L. 273 subject to no taxes being payable for the current year.

The Assessor reported that the lot in question is situated one hundred feet East of Queensbury Avenue, on the South side of Seventh Street – Size 50 x 137 – assessed at \$570.00 – 1931 taxes \$29.64. The lot is covered with light brush and one large stump at rear. The Assessor further stated verbally that the lane in the block had been opened and that a water service is readily accessible to the property.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Loutet and resolved that the offer be accepted subject to the required procedure having been taken in posting the lot for sale at the price stated and that the necessary by-law be prepared and submitted to the Council – the property to be sold free of taxes for the year 1931.

DUE ACCOUNTS

Reports and recommendations of the Finance, Police, School, Ferry, Board of Works, Waterworks, Fire and Light, Health and Parks Committees were submitted by the respective Chairmen and read to the meeting and the Treasurer was authorized to pay the accounts in the following amounts:

	1870.15	\$3088.02
Police		1381.73
School		11635.67
Ferry	6241.21	
	6706.63	12947.84
Board of Works	200.70	
	252.75	
	1228.08	
	1761.14	
	7427.43	10870.10
Fire and Light		2048.50
Waterworks	2428.68	
	1543.11	
	165.39	
	168.14	4305.32
Health	268.49	
	140.00	
	140.68	549.17
Parks	543.65	
	508.44	
	88.04	
	92.10	1232.14

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Moved by Alderman Loutet, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that:

WHEREAS a serious condition of unemployment exists, throughout Canada, which is depriving large numbers of able bodied men of the means of supporting themselves and their dependents, and

WHEREAS this condition of unemployment is impoverishing a large portion of the population and has become a serious menace to the welfare of the country, and

WHEREAS many reasons have been advanced by economists for the existing depression but no two seem to agree, and

WHEREAS in our opinion there are many contributing causes, which taken together, have brought about the present serious state of affairs, and

WHEREAS it is the opinion of this Council that Municipal responsibility for the care of the poor and destitute was determined at a time when people remained in the municipality in which they were born and did not move from place to place as they do today, and that such responsibility where the poor and destitute of today have, in a large percentage of cases, come from other parts of Canada should

not be a responsibility of the municipality alone, the cost to the land owner being beyond his ability to pay.

BE IT RESOLVED THEREFORE that this Council request the Government of the Dominion of Canada, to take immediate steps to alleviate the present intolerable conditions.

- 1. By instituting Government works of a useful nature, to be paid for at a scale of wages that will insure a decent living.
- 2. By bearing the cost of direct relief to those unemployed who have been resident less than one year within the municipality.

AND for the better carrying out of these projects arranging for registration of the unemployed so as to separate the genuine from those who are endeavouring to exploit the necessity of the willing and capable worker.

AND FURTHER that the Government be asked to arrange for an investigation into the causes of the present depression with a view to remedying by legislation the abuses, which are partly responsible.

Amongst such causes we would suggest as a subject for investigation.

- 1. The over capitalization of many public companies.
- 2. The exploitation of the public through the sale of large bond issues without sufficient physical assets behind them.
- 3. Non-partisan examination of various national undertakings in order to prevent uneconomic competition with private industry and unproductive expenditures by Government appointed bodies.

AND that a copy of the foregoing resolution be forwarded to the Prime Minister of Canada.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the following report of the FINANCE COMMITTEE be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the Treasurer be and is hereby authorized to make the necessary book entries crediting the 1931 tax collections with \$29.56 being the current year's taxes of Samuel George Eastman on Lot 10, Block 4, D. L. 265, the property being mortgaged to the City for relief granted.

RECOMMEND that the June report of Direct Relief distributed be adopted and that future statements be set out in the manner indicated.

SUMMARY

Relief to Indigents	\$299.00
Payment to Institutions	258.41

Monthly Pensions	40.00
Medical Aid	11.00
	\$608.41

RECOMMEND that George Shade be notified that on and after August 1st 1931, he will be required to pay in advance to the Corporation a monthly rental of \$5.00 for the premises he occupies – situated on the South half of Lot 28, Block 228, D. L. 545.

RECOMMEND that the Solicitor and Clerk be given power to act in the matter of rent collections from the occupiers of the premises known as 295 – 299 and 301 Esplanade West.

RECOMMEND that the lessees of the "Heywood Auto Camp" be notified that if the yearly rent of \$75.00 due on May 1st 1931, is not paid on or before July 31st 1931, the Corporation will take steps to re-enter and take possession of the premises for non-payment of rent and non-performance of leasehold covenants.

RECOMMEND that James Barr, 441 Keith Road East, be notified the Council are prepared to accept the sum of \$120.00 cash for Lot 10, Block 2, D. L. 273 with no taxes payable for the current year, provided acceptance is made within one week from the date of notification, and in the event of Mr. Barr failing to purchase the lot within that time, those who petitioned to remove the brush from the same lot are to be granted permission to proceed with the work and that the Engineer submit a report in writing to the Council dealing with the complaint regarding a high fence recently erected, at the rear of Mr. Barr's property – Lot 9, Block 2, D. L. 273.

RECOMMEND that the Coty's expense bill against the James Blair Transfer totalling \$75.69 covering the cost of repairs made necessary to the bridge and water main on Keith Road West, at Mission Creek, following damage done by one of the Company's trucks on April 24th last, be referred to the Solicitor for collection.

RECOMMEND that the application of several taxpayers for work with the City equivalent to the amount of their taxes, be no agreed to.

RECOMMEND that Storekeepers handling City relief orders be again instructed on the line of groceries to be given to recipients, and that under no circumstances is cash to be returned to the applicants for any part of the order.

RECOMMEND that Anna Holtz, 116 1st Street East – subject to her Statutory Declarations being properly completed as to vacancy dates – be granted a rebate of water rates for the periods that any of the suites at the said address were unoccupied from July 1930 to June 1931.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the following report of the FERRY COMMITTEE be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the Coal Analysis from January to June 1931 be received and filed.

	Moisture	Volatile	Carbon	Ash	Dry BTU's
Average	2.02%	30.75%	56.16%	13.08%	13,122
Contract	2.36%	29.55%	54.00%	14.44%	12,875

RECOMMEND that in view of the low estimated profit on the Ferries as disclosed by a profit and less statement dated June 26th 1931, a meeting be held at 5 P.M. on Wednesday, July 8th, at the Ferry office, to consider the ways and means of arranging a running schedule of the Ferries adequate to the demands of the service at a reduced cost, and consider any other changes deemed necessary to obtain results commensurate with the capital outlay involved.

RECOMMEND that Ferry rates for passenger cars that have been converted to runabout trucks be charges at the scheduled rate of 25 cents each way, in each and every case where a truck license is held, and that a strict discretionary watch be kept in cases where a passenger cars are being used for commercial purposes.

RECOMMEND that Commutation ticket rates to students attending summer classes in Vancouver, be not granted at this time.

RECOMMEND that the communication from the Boeing Aircraft of Canada Ltd. requesting that a letter be forwarded to them stating the amount the City had paid under contract for building the new Ferry, also certifying that the Ferry was completed and had been accepted by the City, in order to permit them to get release of a builders bond from the Canada Surety Co. be referred to the Solicitor and Superintendent.

RECOMMEND that the Ferry Superintendent and Engineer each prepare a list of names in person stating their condition, time worked, earnings, if they are ratepayers, etc., who have been given temporary work at any time this year in any capacity in connection with the Ferry service.

RECOMMEND that needed repairs to the face of the Vancouver Ferry dock be undertaken without delay.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the following report of the WATERWORKS COMMITTEE be adopted:

RECOMMEND that the communications from the Engineer on water supplied to the District be used as a basis of consideration towards arriving at an agreement between the two municipalities whereby water that is used be metered and paid for in bulk, at approximately the same rates as are being charged by the Greater Vancouver Water District, together with the suggestion that the Joint Water Committee of the two Councils discuss the proposals at an early date and report.

BY-LAWS

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council a By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1931, No. 10" and that the said by-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1931, No. 10" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Brown, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1931, No. 10" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the By-law entitled "CITY OF NORTH VANCOUVER LAND SALES BY-LAW 1931, No. 10" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Voting For: His Worship Mayor Bridgman, and Aldermen Brown, Cartwright, Huggett, Loutet, and Wilson.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that leave be now granted to introduce at this meeting of Council a By-law entitled "A BY-LAW TO REPEAL BY-LAW No. 484 FOR THE EARLY CLOSING OF BARBER SHOPS" and that the said by-law receive three readings at this meeting of Council and that the occasion for such three readings be deemed an urgent one within the meaning of the Procedure By-law.

Whereupon the By-law was introduced and read a first time.

Moved by Alderman Cartwright, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the Bylaw entitled "A BY-LAW TO REPEAL BY-LAW No. 484 FOR THE EARLY CLOSING OF BARBER SHOPS" be now read a second time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a second time.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Huggett and resolved that the Committee proceedings with respect to the By-law entitled "A BY-LAW TO REPEAL BY-LAW No. 484 FOR THE EARLY CLOSING OF BARBER SHOPS" be dispensed with.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Cartwright and resolved that the By-law entitled "A BY-LAW TO REPEAL BY-LAW No. 484 FOR THE EARLY CLOSING OF BARBER SHOPS" be now read a third time.

Whereupon the By-law was read a third time and passed by the Council subject to reconsideration.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that this Council do now resolve itself into Committee of the Whole.

Alderman Cartwright was appointed Chairman.

IN COMMITTEE

IN COUNCIL

Moved by Alderman Huggett, seconded by Alderman Wilson and resolved that the foregoing report of the Committee of the Whole be adopted.

Moved by Alderman Wilson, seconded by Alderman Brown and resolved that this meeting of Council do now adjourn.

Whereupon the meeting adjourned at 10:10 P.M.	Whereupon	the	meeting	adjourned	at	10:10	P.N
---	-----------	-----	---------	-----------	----	-------	-----

E. H. BRIDGMAN MAYOR